
PERSONNEL AND GENERAL 
PURPOSES SUB-COMMITTEE

AGENDA

Date: Wednesday, 26th February, 2020

Time: 7.00 pm

Venue: Guildhall



2

PERSONNEL AND GENERAL PURPOSES SUB-COMMITTEE 

Information for Members of the Public

Access to the Guildhall is via the front entrance in the High Street.  The nearest car park is 
Copenhagen Street (pay and display). If you are a wheelchair user or have restricted mobility, access 
to the Guildhall can be gained either through the door on the right side of the forecourt as you face 
the Guildhall, or through the sliding doors at the rear of the Guildhall. There is dedicated disabled 
parking space at the rear (access via Copenhagen Street). Most meetings are held on the ground 
floor, which can be reached by using a lift.  If you are a wheelchair user or have restricted mobility 
and you wish to attend a meeting, please telephone or email the officer mentioned below in advance 
and we will make any necessary arrangements to assist your visit.

Part I of the Agenda includes items for discussion in public.  You have the right to inspect copies of 
Minutes and reports on this part of the Agenda as well as background documents used in the 
preparation of these reports. Details of the background papers appear at the foot of each report. Part 
II of the Agenda (if applicable) deals with items of 'Exempt Information' for which it is anticipated that 
the public may be excluded from the meeting and neither reports nor background papers are open to 
public inspection.

Please note that this is a public meeting and members of the public and press are permitted to report 
on the proceedings. "Reporting" includes filming, photographing, making an audio recording and 
providing commentary on proceedings. Any communicative method can be used to report on the 
proceedings, including the internet, to publish, post or share the proceedings. Accordingly, the 
attendance of members of the public at this meeting may be recorded and broadcast. By choosing to 
attend this public meeting you are deemed to have given your consent to being filmed or recorded 
and for any footage to be broadcast or published.  

Please note the Council audio records and live streams many of its meetings. These recordings are 
published on the relevant meeting pages of the Council’s website. A notice to this effect will be posted 
in the meeting room. If a member of the public chooses to speak at a meeting of the City Council 
he/she will be deemed to have given their consent to being recorded and audio being published live to 
the Council’s website. The Chairman of the meeting, can at their discretion, terminate or suspend 
recording, if in their opinion, continuing to do so would prejudice the proceedings of the meeting or if 
they consider that continued recording might infringe the rights of any individual, or breach any 
statutory provision.

At the start of the meeting under the item 'Public Participation' up to fifteen minutes in total is allowed 
for members of the public to present a petition, ask a question or comment on any matter on the 
Agenda.  Participants need to indicate that they wish to speak by 4.30 p.m. on the last 
working day before the meeting by writing, telephoning or E-Mailing the officer mentioned 
below.

If you have any general enquires or queries about this Agenda or require any details of background 
papers, further documents or information, or to discuss arrangements for the taking of photographs, 
film, video or sound recording, please contact the Lead Officer, Julian Pugh, Democratic Services 
Administrator, Guildhall, Worcester WR1 2EY.  Telephone: 01905 722027 (direct line); E-
Mail Address:  committeeadministration@worcester.gov.uk.

This agenda can be made available in large print, braille, on PC disk, tape or in a number of ethnic 
minority languages.  Please contact the above named officer for further information.

Agendas and minutes relating to all City Council Committees and Council Meetings are also available 
electronically, click on the option “Committee Minutes and Documents”, Website Address: 
worcester.gov.uk

mailto:committeeadministration@worcester.gov.uk


3

Personnel and General Purposes Sub-Committee
Wednesday, 26 February 2020

Members of the Sub-Committee:-

Chairman: Councillor Louis Stephen (G)
Vice-Chairman: Councillor Marc Bayliss (C) and Councillor Adrian Gregson (L)

Councillor Roger Berry (LCo)
Councillor Mrs. Lucy Hodgson (C)

Councillor Chris Mitchell (C)
Councillor Joy Squires (L)

C= Conservative G = Green L = Labour LCo = Labour and Co-operative
LD = Liberal Democrat

AGENDA

Part 1
(ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND DECISION IN PUBLIC)

1. Appointment of Substitutes To receive details of any Members 
appointed to attend the meeting instead of 
a Member of the Sub-Committee.

2. Declarations of Interest To receive any declarations of interest.

3. Public Participation Up to a total of fifteen minutes can be 
allowed, each speaker being allocated a 
maximum of five minutes, for members of 
the public to present a petition, ask a 
question or comment on any matter on the 
Agenda or within the remit of the Sub-
Committee.

4. Minutes 
Page(s): 1 - 6

Of the meeting held on 4th November 2019 
to be approved and signed.

5. Living Wage Accreditation 
Update Report 
Page(s): 7 - 10
Ward(s): All Wards
Contact Officer: Mark Edwards, 

Head of People 
Services
Tel: 01905 
722042

That the Sub-Committee notes the 
progress being made to identify the 
implications of and actions necessary to 
become an accredited Living Wage 
Employer.

6. Any Other Business Which in the opinion of the Chairman is of 
sufficient urgency as to warrant 
consideration.



4

7. Item Involving the Disclosure of 
Exempt Information 

The Sub-Committee are invited to pass the 
following resolution:-

That under Section 100A(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, the press and public 
be excluded from the meeting for the 
following item of business on the grounds 
that it involves the likely disclosure of 
information as defined in Schedule 12A of 
the said Act.

PART II
(ITEM FOR DISCUSSION IN PRIVATE)

8. Living Wage Accreditation 
Update Report 
Page(s): 11 - 12
Ward(s): All Wards
Contact Officer: Mark Edwards, 

Head of People 
Services
Tel: 01905 
722042

To note the restricted Appendix to the 
report. 



PERSONNEL AND GENERAL PURPOSES SUB-COMMITTEE

4th November 2019

Present: Councillor Louis Stephen in the Chair

Councillors A. Amos, Barnes, Bayliss (Vice-
Chairman), Berry, Geraghty and Squires

Officers: David Blake, Managing Director
Mark Edwards, Head of People Services
Shane Flynn, Corporate Director – Finance 
and Resources and Returning Officer

10 Appointment of Substitutes 

Councillor A. Amos for Councillor Mrs L. Hodgson, Councillor Barnes for Councillor 
Gregson, Councillor Geraghty for Councillor Mitchell.

11 Declarations of Interest 

None.

12 Public Participation 

None.

13 Minutes 

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 17th July 2019 be 
approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

14 Review of Polling Districts, Polling Places and Polling Stations 2019 

The Sub-Committee considered a report on the findings of the Review of the 
Polling Districts, Polling Places and Polling Stations in the Parliamentary 
Constituency of Worcester which had been carried out in accordance with the 
Representation of the People Act 1983. The Returning Officer presented the report 
and highlighted the main points.

In summary, ten proposals for a change to polling places or polling districts were 
recommended. These were identified in paragraph 5.2 and Appendix 1 of the 
report, together with the rationale for each proposal.

In the ensuing discussion the following main points were highlighted:

 Members commented that the title of some venues may be different to those 
listed. In response, the Returning Officer advised that these details will be 
checked to ensure they are up-to-date.

 There was a discussion about the use of the Riverside Building in St. Clement 
Ward. The Returning Officer explained that the Riverside Building is a suitable 
venue and is available. Any feedback from electors will be considered as part 
of the regular reviews that are undertaken after every election. 

Page 1 Agenda Item 4



4th November 2019 2

 Oldbury Park Primary School is an existing venue and measures are in place 
to address safeguarding and on-site security on polling day. Discussions with 
the Head teacher had highlighted continuing issues regarding safeguarding on 
site and the Returning Officer had agreed various changes to address these. 
The Returning Officer reported that the meeting was positive about the 
continued use of the school as a polling station, subject to these changes. 
Using the main University building had been considered and the Returning 
Officer explained that a number of issues had been taken into consideration, 
including open, unsecured, access to the campus site, the distance from road 
to the proposed polling station, the open foyer and the number of people 
using the building. On balance it had been decided that the existing venue is 
suitable and is available, and therefore no change was proposed.

 The communication plan will address the process for informing electors of 
changes to polling station locations.

 The Returning Officer explained the criteria for appeals and stated that he was 
satisfied that the proposals had taken into account the reasonable 
requirements of the electors.

The Sub-Committee unanimously approved the proposed polling places as set out 
in the report. In accordance with the Constitution, changes to polling districts are 
the responsibility of Full Council. The Sub-Committee agreed to recommend the 
Council to approve the proposals for changes to polling districts, as set out in the 
report.

RESOLVED: That the Sub-Committee:

1. approve the proposed polling places as set out in Appendix 1 and 
Section 5.2 of the report;

2. note the proposed polling districts and refer the proposals to Council 
for consideration and approval as set out in Appendix 1 and Section 
5.2 of the report; and

3. subject to approval by Council, agree to authorise the Returning 
Officer and Deputy Returning Officer to take all necessary steps to 
implement these recommendations.

15 Recruitment Policy & Procedure 

The Sub-Committee considered a report on proposed amendments to the 
Recruitment Policy & Procedure. The Head of People Services presented the report 
and explained that the current Policy came into effect in July 2015 and was 
therefore overdue for review. The update incorporated feedback from the People 
Services team, and technological advances within the Council. The key changes 
included:

 References to HR changed to People Services and references to Service 
Manager changed to Head of Service.

 References to Two Ticks “Positive About Disability” Scheme changed to 
Disability Confident Scheme.

Page 2



4th November 2019 3

 Introduction of Generic Role Profiles and Task Specifics following the re-
working of the Council’s pay structure in 2016.

 System improvements meaning that applicants now have the option of 
attaching a CV rather than complete an online application form; and much 
of the induction process is now completed on the Learning Lounge via e-
learning.  

It was noted that the proposals had been the subject of consultation with the 
trade unions and had been supported by the Joint Consultative and Safety 
Committee.

Sub-Committee Members expressed support for the proposed amendments.

RESOLVED: That the Sub-Committee approve the proposed amendments 
to the Recruitment Policy & Procedure.

16 Grievance Policy and Procedure 

The Sub-Committee considered a report on proposed amendments to the 
proposed Grievance Policy and Procedure. The Head of People Services presented 
the report and explained that the current Procedure came into effect in June 2012 
and was therefore overdue for review. The update incorporated feedback from the 
People Services team, and was in line with current ACAS Code of Practice on 
Disciplinary and Grievance Procedures.   In summary, the main changes were:

 All references to HR changed to People Services, Service Manager changed to 
Head of Service.

 Recognising and applying the ACAS Code of Practice on Disciplinary and 
Grievance Procedures.  

 Managers to clarify if any employee communication detailing an issue is 
deemed a grievance (section 2.4).

 Third Party grievances  (section 3.4).
 Principles:  To recognise appropriateness of mediation at any stage of a 

grievance and to make reasonable adjustments for language difficulties. 
(sections 5.4, 5.6).

 Malicious Intent: If a grievance is not made in good faith and/or made with 
malicious intent (section 6.1). 

 Formal Grievance Meeting: Consider previous grievance resolutions for 
consistency of treatment (section 9.5)

 Grievances and the wellbeing of employees (section 10).
 Grievances and Ex employees (section 11).
 Where mediation may not be suitable (section 13).
 Related Policies (section 15).
 Appendices: Templates for Notifications of a Formal Grievance and Appeal. 

(sections 16 and 17).

It was noted that the proposals had been the subject of consultation with the 
trade unions and had been supported by the Joint Consultative and Safety 
Committee.

Sub-Committee Members expressed support for the proposed amendments.

Page 3



4th November 2019 4

RESOLVED: That the Sub-Committee approve the proposed amendments 
to the Grievance Policy and Procedure.

17 Dignity at Work (Bullying, Harassment And Victimisation) Policy 

The Sub-Committee considered a report on proposed amendments to the Dignity 
at Work (Bullying, Harassment and Victimisation) Policy. The Head of People 
Services presented the report and explained that the current Policy came into 
effect in August 2013 and was therefore overdue for review. The update 
incorporated feedback from the People Services team, and was in line with current 
CIPD, ACAS and gov.uk  guidelines. The key changes included:

 All references to HR changed to People Services, of Shareportal changed to 
Staffroom.

 The inclusion of Victimisation within the Scope, Purpose and Procedural 
Workflow of the Policy.

 Four additional examples of unacceptable behaviour within the scope of the 
Policy(Section 5.4, x – xiii).

 Reference to additional related documents of: Employee T&Cs; Recruitment 
Policy and Procedure; People Strategy. (Section 11).

 Signposting to new H&S Event form to capture Third Party Harassment 
Incidents. (Section 3.2).

In the ensuing discussion, the Head of People Services explained that there is 
reference to this topic in the annual Staff Survey. More information can be 
forwarded to Sub-Committee Members.

It was noted that the proposals had been the subject of consultation with the 
trade unions and had been supported by the Joint Consultative and Safety 
Committee.

Sub-Committee Members expressed support for the proposed amendments.

RESOLVED: That the Sub-Committee approve the proposed amendments 
to the Dignity at Work (Bullying, Harassment and Victimisation) Policy.

18 Amendment to the Sickness Absence Management Policy & Procedure 

The Sub-Committee considered a report on a proposed amendment to the 
Sickness Absence Policy and Procedure. The Head of People Services presented 
the report and explained that the existing procedure allowed for managers 
reviewing the attendance of employees who have met trigger points to issue a 
warning after the review meeting.  Such warnings were not in themselves a 
sanction, but were an indication of the consequences of continuing high levels of 
sickness absence.  On that basis the procedure did not allow for employee appeals 
against the warning.  UNISON had requested that appeals be allowed on the basis 
that three such warnings could lead to dismissal of the employee.  Management 
were minded to concede this in order to maintain good employee relations.  
Consequently section 12.1.1 had been amended to provide for appeals to be 
made to the relevant Head of Service.         

It was noted that the proposal had been the subject of consultation with the trade 
unions and had been supported by the Joint Consultative and Safety Committee.

Page 4



4th November 2019 5

Sub-Committee Members expressed support for the proposal.

RESOLVED: That the Sub-Committee approve the proposed amendment to 
the Sickness Absence Policy & Procedure.

19 Any Other Business 

None.

Duration of the meeting: 7.00p.m. – 7.40p.m.

Chairman at the meeting on
26th February 2020

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



Report to: Personnel & General Purposes Sub-Committee, 26th February 2020

Report of: Head of People Services 

Subject: LIVING WAGE ACCREDITATION UPDATE REPORT

1. Recommendation

1.1 That the Sub-Committee notes the progress being made to identify the 
implications of and actions necessary to become an accredited Living Wage 
Employer.

2. Background

2.1 The Council has paid its lowest paid employees the Living Wage since 2014, but until 
now has not sought accreditation with the Living Wage Foundation. 

2.2 On the 22nd October 2019 Council resolved ‘That Council now proposes to take the 
next step and become an accredited living wage employer by November 2020 and 
directs officers to produce a detailed report of proposals and implications to the next 
Personnel and General Purposes Sub-Committee’.

2.3 What is now often called the Real Living wage is a voluntary pay rate set by the 
Living Wage Foundation based on a calculation of the level of income needed for an 
acceptable standard of living in the UK.  The rate is currently set at £9.30 for most of 
the UK.  A higher rate of £10.75 applies in London.  It applies to all workers over the 
age of 18.  The argument for adopting the living wage is principally a moral one, but 
Foundation research suggests that it can improve staff moral and productivity, 
improve employee retention, reduce rates of sickness absence and deliver higher 
quality candidates for vacancies.  

2.4 The term ‘Real Living Wage’ has been adopted to distinguish it from the more 
recently implemented National Living Wage which is statutory figure set by the 
government.  This rate is currently set at £8.21, but is set to rise to £8.72 on the 1st 
of April this year.  This is in effect a statutory minimum wage for workers aged over 
25.  Separate national minimum wages are in place for younger workers at £7.70 
from age 21 to 24, £6.15 from 18 to 20 and £4.35 for workers under 18.

2.5 Accreditation with the Living Wage Foundation involves more that just paying our 
employees the Real Living Wage.  We also have to commit to having all of our 
regular third-party contracted staff paid the Real Living Wage and it is this aspect of 
accreditation that the bulk of this update focuses on.

Page 7 Agenda Item 5



3. Information 

3.1 The Living Wage Foundation sets a clear basis for identifying relevant contracts.  
These are all contracts where labour is being purchased for at least 2 hours a week 
and for 8 consecutive weeks.  Contracts deemed to be in scope are identified in the 
restricted Appendix to this report.  We are in communication with the Foundation 
now and liaising with them on possible future accreditation.

3.2 The Foundation does not require us to persuade contractors to pay the living wage in 
the middle of an already awarded contract.  What they do require us to do is actively 
plan to build living wage compliance into our procurement processes and in 
particular communicate our position to all potential suppliers and build the living 
wage requirement into our pre-qualification questionnaires.  They acknowledge that 
this work is complex and challenging and if we are to progress they will endeavour to 
set us up in a buddying arrangement with a council that has already achieved 
accreditation.  

3.3 Financial Implications for contracts 

None of the contractors identified are living wage employers.  In total we estimate 
that living wage accreditation would potentially add around £300,000 a year to our 
costs, but this is necessarily a very rough estimate at this stage and we will seek to 
firm these figures before any final commitment to accreditation.  In addition there is 
a modest cost of £250 for the accreditation process. 

3.4     The Council also spends around £500,000 a year on agency workers to provide 
affordable cover for absences and vacancies in essential services.  Legislation on 
treatment of short term workers means that agency workers transfer on to our real 
living Wage rates after 12 weeks.  We need to change that transfer point to 8 weeks 
to meet the foundation criteria.  We estimate that this would add around £20,000 to 
our employment costs each year although use of agency workers can vary from year 
to year. 

3.5    Other implications 

As the Appendix indicates, it would be 5 years before we could build the living wage 
into all of our contracts. That in it would not preclude us from gaining Living Wage 
accreditation as long as we can satisfy the foundation that our plans and 
procurement process changes were meaningful and credible.  Perhaps the biggest 
concern is that some of the national players might be deterred from bidding by 
concerns about the pay structure implications for their wider national workforce.   
More widely it would be reasonable to predict that building living wage compliance 
into our procurement processes will narrow the pool of providers willing to tender 
and will tend to increase costs.

3.6 An additional complication is that requiring contractors to pay above the legal 
minimum wage (National Living Wage) would appear to be in breach of EU 
procurement regulations.  The foundation advises some ways of minimising the risk 
of legal challenge, including 

 Seeking a Living Wage based tender and a non-Living Wage tender and always 
opting for the Living Age option 

Page 8



 Giving the living Wage a weighting as part of the social value evaluation of 
tenders 

They also note that no legal case has ever been brought against a local authority      
for using the Real Living wage in their procurement policy and practice.  Leaving the 
European Union may remove this barrier.

3.7 Some authorities have proposed specifying payment of the real living wage as a 
measure of social value under the provisions of the Public Services (Social Value) Act 
2012.  Even if this route is viable challenges remain.

 Staff may not be fully employed to work on council contracts.  They may also 
work on contracts for other employers; but it may not be possible for the 
employer to pass on additional costs to its other customers or pay an 
employee two different rates for the same work.

 Some suppliers might find themselves in a position where two employees 
doing the same work for different customers are paid different rates, leading 
to potential equal pay claims.

3.8     Next steps 

More work is required to resolve the issues described in sections 3.1 to 3.7.  We 
propose to bring a further update to the June meeting of this committee.  We also 
want to explore links between this initiative and another Council resolution.  Many 
Council’s build on their accreditation to promote the Real Living Wage to other 
employers in their area, declaring their area to be a Living Wage city for example.  
In this context it may be appropriate to consider merging this initiative with the Fair 
Employer resolution also agreed at Council in October. 

‘The Council resolves to work with local businesses and their representative 
organisations to demonstrate the merits of being a fair employer’.  In addition to 
paying the Living Wage being a fair employer involves further commitments such as 
offering stable contracts with regular amount of guaranteed hours.  The June update 
will offer further guidance on the merits of linking these two initiatives.

Ward(s): All
Contact Officer: Mark Edwards - Tel 01905 722042 Email 

mark.edwards@worcester.gov.uk
Background Papers: None

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 11 Agenda Item 8
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	Minutes

	5 Living Wage Accreditation Update Report
	8 Living Wage Accreditation Update Report

